
Bryant City Council

Boswell Municipal Complex - City Hall Court Room

210 SW 3rd Street

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas

Date: October 25, 2022 - Time: 6:30 PM

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Approval of Minutes

1. Bryant City Council Meeting 9/27/2022
• Unfinished Set 27 Minutes.pdf

Presentations and Announcements

2. Garver - Stormwater Master Plan Update
• Garver Drainage Master Plan Updates (2022-10-25) (1).pdf

3. Garver - Bryant Parkway Update
• Garver Bryant Pkwy Updates (2022-10-25) (1).pdf

4. Animal Shelter Appreciation Week Proclamation
• Animal Shelter Appreciation Week 2022.pdf

5. Committee Appointments

1. Appointing Cody Crist to replace Spencer McCorkle on the Parks Committee

2. Appointing Al Wise to replace Jack Moseley on the Water/Wastewater Committee

6. Kristin Robinson - ARPA Professional of the Year Award

7. McClelland Consulting Engineers (MCE) - Parks Master Plan Update

Director's Report

8. Animal Control Director's Report

Public Comments

https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/unfinished_set_27_minutes.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/garver_drainage_master_plan_updates_-2022-10-25-_-1-.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/garver_bryant_pkwy_updates_-2022-10-25-_-1-.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/animal_shelter_appreciation_week_2022.pdf


Old Business

New Business

Finance

9. 1st Monthly Report out of Tyler - Monthly Report for period ending September 30, 2022

Approval and Acceptance of the regular Monthly Report for period ending September 30, 2022 (attachment pending).

• 10-20-22_month_ending_sept_2022_report_first_in_tyler_format_under_revision.pdf

10. Budget Adjustments - Resolution for Budget Adjustments

Resolution to amend the city budget for the period beginning January 1, 2022 and ending December 31, 2022 (attachment

pending).

• 10-20-22_budget_adjustment_list.pdf

Community Development

11. Resolution for Metroplan Engineering Design Only Grant - A Resolution Expressing the Willingness of

the City of Bryant to Utilize Federal-Aid Surface Transportation Program Funds

Resolution for Metroplan Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG).

Projects are for design only NOT construction.

Projects selected will be designed in 2023 and eligible to apply for construction funding for FFY 2024.

• 2023_STBG_Resolution_Final.pdf

12. Public Hearing/Ordinance - Cypress Valley Improvement District - An Ordinance Approving Annexation

of the Lands to Bryant Municipal Property Owners' Multipurpose Improvement District NO. 62 (Lombard

Development LLC-Cypress Valley, Phase 2)

Open Public Hearing - Public Comment - Close Public Hearing - Action on Ordinance

• Ordinance - Cypress Valley Phase 2 Improvement District.pdf

Fire Department

13. Update to Open Burning Ordinance. - - An Ordinance Ammending the Defining and Limiting Conditions

for Open Burning Within the City Limits of the City of Bryant; Providing for Enforcement; and for Other

Purposes

Revisions to current open burning ordinance

• PROPOSED Burn Ord 102522.pdf

Public Works

14. Meter Recommendation - Metron-Farnier
• Bryant

• AR - 2022-01-04_V2.pdf

15. Meter Ratings - Metron-Farnier
• DOC102022-10202022132451.pdf

Council Comments

Mayor Comments

Adjournments

https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/10-20-22_month_ending_sept_2022_report_first_in_tyler_format_under_revision.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/10-20-22_budget_adjustment_list.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/2023_stbg_resolution_final.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/ordinance_-_cypress_valley_phase_2_improvement_district.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/proposed_burn_ord_102522.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/bryant-_ar_-_2022-01-04_v2.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_142/doc102022-10202022132451.pdf


1 

 

Bryant City Council REGULAR City Council Meeting 
September 27, 2022 -  6:30 PM 

Boswell Municipal Complex - City Hall Court Room  
210 SW 3rd Street   Bryant, Arkansas 

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas 
 

 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES  
 
Prior to the Council Meeting, a prayer was given by Council Member Higginbotham.  
The prayer was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag led by Butch 
Higginbotham. 
 
Call to Order by Mayor Scott at 6:30 pm 
 
Roll Call – Council Members Present: Star Henson, Butch Higginbotham, Lisa Meyer, 

Jack Moseley, Wade Permenter.  Absent: RJ Hawk, Rob Roedel, Ronda Sanders.  City 

Attorney Clancy Ashley were also present. 

Quorum Present 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

1. Approval of the August 30, 2022 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
Motion to approve by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council 

Member Meyer.  Voice Vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.   [YT 3:45] 

2. Approval of the September 7, 2022 Special Council Meeting Minutes 
Motion to approve by Council Member Meyer, second by Council Member 

Henson.  Voice Vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.    [YT 4:05] 

 
PRESENTATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

3. Proclamation for 130th Anniversary of City of Bryant –  
The Mayor read a Proclamation celebrating the 130th Anniversary of the City of 
Bryant which was presented to Joyce Boswell and members of the Bryant 
Historical Society.        [YT 4:50] 

 
Directors Report –  

Public Works Director’s Report – Presented by Tim Fournier, Director of Public 
Works gave an update on the water meter progress including the installation of 
new repeaters and the pilot meter project.    [YT 17:00] 

 

 

https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas


2 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS     
 

Debbie Broadway of Bryant offered prayers for the injured Bryant Police Officers.  
Asked about meter read dates and encouraged the completion of the meter 
project. 
 
Carol Permenter of Bryant asked for Burn Ordinance be reconsidered for 2 acre 
burns to occur at any time. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Finance – presented by Joy Black, Director of Finance 
 

4. Monthly Ending July Finance Report – Presentation 
Presentation and Approval of the Monthly Finance Report for period ending 
August, 2022, see attachment. 
Motion to approve by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council 
Member Henson. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 23:40] 
 

5. Budget Adjustment Resolution – August Budget Adjustments List 
Resolution to amend the city budget, see attachment. 
Motion to approve by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council 
Member Permenter. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 24:00] 
RESOLUTION 2022- 26 
 

6. Conversion Reclass – Conversion Reclass via budget adjustments 
Approval and Acceptance of conversion budget reclasses for Planning and 
Water/Wastewater,   see attached listing that zeros out the affect. 
Short discussion followed. 
Motion to approve by Council Member Meyer, second by Council Member 
Moseley. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 28:30] 

 
7. Record Destruction Acceptance – Affidavit of Record Destruction Acceptance 

Resolution to accept the affidavit certifying record destruction, see attachment. 

Motion to approve by Council Member Meyer, second by Council Member 
Permenter. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 29:30] 
RESOLUTION 2022- 27 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

 

8. Personal Mills Ordinance 
An ordinance to levying a tax on all personal property; see attached. 

Motion to suspend the rules and read 1st, 2nd, and 3rd reading by title only by 
Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 30:20] 
Ordinance title read by Mayor Scott. 
Motion to adopt by Council Member Permenter, second by Council Member 
Henson. 
Roll Call Vote.  YEAS: Permenter, Moseley, Higginbotham, Meyer, Henson. 
ABSENT:  Roedel, Sanders, Hawk. 
Motion Passed 5-3.        [YT 31:00] 
Clerk Note: No Emergency Clauses were considered during this meeting for lack 
of enough Council Members present. 
ORDINANCE 2022- 20 
 

9. Real Property Mills Ordinance 
An ordinance to levying a tax on all real property; see attached. 

Motion to suspend the rules and read 1st, 2nd, and 3rd reading by title only by 
Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 32:00] 
Ordinance title read by Mayor Scott. 
Motion to adopt by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member 
Henson. 
Roll Call Vote.  YEAS: Meyer, Higginbotham, Moseley, Henson, Permenter. 
ABSENT:  Hawk, Sanders, Roedel. 
Motion Passed 5-3.        [YT 32:30] 
ORDINANCE 2022- 21 
 

City Attorney – presented by Ashley Clancy, city attorney 

10. City of Bryant PSAP Ordinance – Ordinance to merge Bryant’s PSAP with the 
County PSAP.  See attached.   
Clerk Note: PSAP stands for public safety answering points- 911. 
Mayor Scott explained that this process will take a year and that Bryant will be 
added to the previous agreement. 
Motion to suspend the rules and read 1st, 2nd, and 3rd reading by title only by 
Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3  .    [YT 35:50] 
Ordinance title read by Mayor Scott. 
Motion to adopt by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member 
Permenter. 
Roll Call Vote.  YEAS: Moseley, Permenter, Higginbotham, Henson, Meyer. 
ABSENT:  Roedel, Hawk, Sanders. 
Motion Passed 5-3.        [YT 37:10] 
ORDINANCE 2022- 22 

 



4 

 

11. Saline County Detention Center- Operational Cost Sharing Agreement 
An agreement to establish a formal binding relationship between the City and 

County, for the detention of persons charged with, or convicted of, violation of 

state or local law, or held as material witness at the Detention Center.  See 

attached. 

Mayor Scott indicated the agreement will provide a known budget amount each 
year rather than fluctuating yearly. 
Motion to approve by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council 
Member Henson. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 38:40] 
 

Community Development – presented by Truett Smith, Director of Planning and 

Community Development 

12. Cypress Valley Annexation – An Ordinance Accepting the Annexation of 
Certain Territory to the City of Bryant’s Approving the Schedule of Services to be 
Extended to Said Area; And Assigning Such to Wards. 
This ordinance approves the annexation of Phase 2 of Cypress Valley.  Phase 2 

has preliminary plat approval from Planning Commission.  It also comes 

recommended by the commission.  See attached. 

Motion to suspend the rules and read 1st, 2nd, and 3rd reading by title only by 
Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member Henson. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 39:55] 
Ordinance title read by Mayor Scott. 
Motion to adopt by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member 
Permenter. 
Roll Call Vote.  YEAS: Henson, Permenter, Moseley, Higginbotham, Meyer.  
ABSENT:  Hawk, Sanders, Roedel. 
Motion Passed 5-3.        [YT 40:30] 
ORDINANCE 2022- 23 
 

13. Annexation of Saratoga into Improvement District No. 108 – An Ordinance 
Approving Annexation of lands to Bryant Municipal Property Owners’ 
Multipurpose Improvement District No. 108 (Kensington Place Subdivision-
Saratoga Place Subdivision). 
The annexation of the Saratoga Place Subdivision into the existing Kensington 

Place Subdivision No. 108. Also renaming the district to Kensington Place 

Subdivision-Saratoga Place Subdivision.  See attached. 

Motion to suspend the rules and read 1st, 2nd, and 3rd reading by title only by 
Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member Permenter. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 41:40] 
Ordinance title read by Mayor Scott. 
Motion to adopt by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member 
Henson. 
Roll Call Vote.  YEAS: Higginbotham, Meyer, Moseley, Henson, Permenter.  
ABSENT:  Hawk, Sanders, Roedel. 



5 

 

Motion Passed 5-3.        [YT 42:15] 
ORDINANCE 2022- 24  
 

14. Creekside Subdivision- Requesting Sidewalk Waiver and Master 
Transportation Change 
Comes recommended by Planning Commission.  See attached. 

Motion to suspend the rules and read 1st, 2nd, and 3rd reading by title only by 
Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member Permenter. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 46:50] 
Ordinance title read by Mayor Scott. 
Motion to adopt by Council Member Permenter, second by Council Member 
Henson. 
Roll Call Vote.  YEAS: Meyer, Henson, Higginbotham, Moseley, Permenter.  
ABSENT:  Hawk, Sanders, Roedel. 
Motion Passed 5-3.        [YT 47:20] 
ORDINANCE 2022- 25 
 

Engineering/Construction – presented by Ted Taylor, City Engineer 

15. Stormwater Project Item Updates 
A. Northlake Culvert Replacement. 

Discussion followed. 
Motion to approve by Council Member Meyer, second by Council Member 

Higginbotham. 

Vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 52:00] 

RESOLUTION 2022-28 

B. Raintree Project Street Drainage Improvements. 
Motion to approve by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council 
Member Meyer. 
Vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 55:10] 
RESOLUTION 2022-29 
 

C. Dogwood Phase 2B Drainage Repair/Improvements; Stone Pine 
Drainage Improvements 
See attached.  Update only. 
 

Fire Department – presented by Fire Chief JP Jordan 

16. Update to Open Burning Ordinance – An Ordinance Amending the Defining 
and Limiting Conditions for Open Burning Within the City Limits of the City of 
Bryant; Providing for Enforcement; and for Other Purposes. 
See amended pdf (2) revisions. 

Lengthy discussion. 

Council Member Higginbotham asked for no burning to be extended to the days 

of Thanksgiving, Christmas and New Years as well as adjoining days. 



6 

 

Council Member Permenter had additional comments on burn policy on two acre 

lots. 

Motion to Table until next month by Council Member Permenter, second by 

Council Member Meyer. 

Voice Vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 1:11:40] 

 

Human Resources – presented by Charlotte Rue, Human Resources Director 

17. Ordinance – An Ordinance to amend the Ordinance No. 2007-26 and 2021-20 to 
change the City Clerk position from full-time to part-time 
Amended to include insurance options that will be offered as of January 1, 2023 

when the position goes to part-time.  See attached. 

Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 1:12:30] 
Ordinance title read by Mayor Scott. 
Motion to adopt by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member 
Meyer. 
Roll Call Vote.  YEAS: Moseley, Higginbotham, Meyer, Henson, Permenter.  
ABSENT:  Sanders, Hawk, Roedel. 
Motion Passed 5-3.        [YT 1:13:10] 
ORDINANCE 2022- 26 
 

Police Department – presented by Police Chief Carl Minden 

18. Ordinance - An Ordinance to Amend the Police Sick Leave Accrual Policy 

Ordinance to amend the Police sick leave accrual policy, with emergency clause.  

Making the sick leave pay out at death or retirement equal for all shifts.  Written 

in compliance with state statue.  See attached. 

Discussion followed. 

Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice vote.  Motion Passed 5-3.      [YT 1:16:55] 
Ordinance title read by Mayor Scott. 
Motion to adopt by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member 
Meyer. 
Roll Call Vote.  YEAS: Permenter, Moseley, Higginbotham, Meyer, Henson.  
ABSENT:  Roedel, Hawk, Sanders. 
Motion Passed 5-3.        [YT 1:17:30] 
ORDINANCE 2022- 27 
 
Chief Minden thanked the Council for the gifts for the officers that were injured 
while on duty, September 24, 2022.  The Chief said Officer Peck was able to 
leave the hospital and go home today and Officer Davis is no longer on a 
ventilator but still has additional surgeries to come.  He also thanked the State 
Police, Saline County Sheriff and the Bryant Fire Department for their assistance 
in saving the officer’s lives following the accident.  Council Member 



7 

 

Higginbotham reminded everyone of the accounts established in each officer’s 
name at Centennial Bank. 
     

Council Comments 
 
Council Member Meyer said that the public needs to be better educated on Code 
Violations and Penalties if the Police are going to be called out during disputes. 
 
Council Member Higginbotham stated that the owner of the Starlight Village 
which was approved by Council now wants to make the homes rentals and he 
asked if the owner will have to come back to Council for approval of the change. 
Director of Planning and Community Development, Truett Smith, said that as 
long as the approved plans are adhered to, further approval would not be 
necessary.   

 
Mayor Comments 

 
Prayer Circle and Blood Drive to be held at the Bryant Police Department on 
Thursday, September 29, 2022 at Noon. 
 
Coffee with the Mayor will include donuts and will be held at Bishop Park, 
Saturday, September 31, 2022 at 9 AM. 

 
Adjournment 
Motion to Adjourn by Council Member Higginbotham, second by Council Member 
Meyer. 
Adjourned time: 7:52 pm.  
 



 

Garver Citywide Master Drainage Plan Update 
October 25, 2022 

 
Citywide Drainage Master Plan 
 

 

• Overview of Scope and Purpose of Study 

 

 

• Current Status 

 

o Finalizing Citywide Drainage Study Screening – Moving toward Phase 2 

 

o Developing and evaluating alternatives for Boone Road area and Oak Glenn 

Subdivision 

 

• Schedule 

 

o Phase 1 – Estimated Completion of November 2022 

 

o Phase 2 – Estimated to begin February 2023 

 

  



0 2,000 4,000
Feet

Legend

Layer
Drainage Issue

House or Business
Other
Road
Yard
Bryant Planning Area
Crooked Creek
Watershed

Flood Severity Index
FS1
FS2
FS3
FS4

¯



0 2,000 4,000
Feet

Legend

Layer
Drainage Issue

House or Business
Other
Road
Yard
Bryant Planning Area
Owen Creek Watershed

Layer2
Flood Severity Index

FS1
FS2
FS3
FS4

¯



0 2,000 4,000
Feet

Legend

Layer
Drainage Issue

House or Business
Other
Road
Yard
Bryant Planning Area

Layer2
Flood Severity Index

FS1
FS2
FS3
FS4

¯



0 2,000 4,000
Feet

Legend
Hurricane Creek
Watershed

Layer3
Flood Severity Index

FS1
FS2
FS3
FS4

Layer2
Drainage Issue

House or Business
Other
Road
Yard

¯



0 2,000 4,000
Feet

Legend

Layer
Drainage Issue

House or Business
Other
Road
Yard
Bryant Planning Area
Crooked Creek
Watershed

Flood Severity Index
FS1
FS2
FS3
FS4

¯



0 2,000 4,000
Feet

Legend

Layer
Drainage Issue

House or Business
Other
Road
Yard
Bryant Planning Area
Owen Creek Watershed

Layer2
Flood Severity Index

FS1
FS2
FS3
FS4

¯



 

Garver Bryant Parkway Update 
October 25, 2022 
 
Construction Update: 

 

• McGeorge began construction July 11th, 2022 

 

• Construction is approximately 10% Complete.  There have not been any significant delays or 

major Change Orders. 

 

• Project is on schedule for completion in July 2024.   

 

• Construction Progress Drone Photos (see attached) 

 

• Completed Work: 

o Clearing and grubbing is complete 

o About half of earthwork is complete 

o About half of airport perimeter fence is complete 

o Some drainage pipe installed 

o Relocation of ILS Underground Electric nearly complete 

o Test piles for the bridge will begin in the coming weeks 

 

• Upcoming Work: 

o Finish relocation of ILS underground electric 

o Finish airport perimeter fence 

o Finish earthwork 

o Continue laying drainage pipe 

o Pre-bore and drive 4 Test piles 

o Start installing 8 bridge bents in February of 2023 

 

 











 

 

 

 

OFFICIAL PROCLAMATION 

 

Whereas, the National Animal Care and Control Association has designated November 10 -16, 2022 as 

Animal Shelter Appreciation Week; and  

 

Whereas, various federal, state, and local government officials throughout the country take this time to 

recognize, thank and commend all Animal Shelter Staff for the dedicated service they provide to the 

citizens, public safety, and public service agencies and departments across the nation as well as the 

animals in their care; and  

 

Whereas, every day, the Bryant Animal Shelter Staff provide care and comfort to shelter animals, assist 

Animal Control Officers with animal rescue and investigations, but also serve the public with kindness, 

compassion and respect; and  

 

Whereas, in addition to their in-shelter work, the Animal Shelter Staff also provides critical community 

programs such as adoption, outreach events, as well as spay and neuter vouchers; and  

 

Whereas, the City of Bryant would like to express its sincere thanks and appreciation for the outstanding 

service the Bryant Animal Control and Adoption Center provides on a daily basis to the citizens of our 

community,  and specifically recognize the following employees for their work:  Animal Shelter Manager 

Rebecca Bennett; and Animal Care Technicians Matthew Burns and Alyssa Galloway; and 

 

Whereas, the City of Bryant recognizes the Animal Shelter Staff for the many dedicated and long hours 

of service they perform in serving both the animals and residents of our community, and for fulfilling the 

City’s commitment to providing the highest level of customer service; and  

 

Now, therefore, be it resolved that as the Mayor of Bryant, I do hereby recognize and declare the 

week of November 10 - 16, 2022, as Animal Shelter Appreciation Week in the City of Bryant and 

encourages all citizens to join us in expressing their sincere appreciation for the service and dedication 

to our Animal Shelter employees and invites all citizens and City Staff to visit the shelter during their 

Open House on Wednesday, November 9, 2022 from 4:00 - 7:00 pm for refreshments and shelter tours. 

 

So Declared on the 25th Day of October, 2022. 

 

____________________________________  

Mayor Allen Scott 







































































































































































































































 

 

ORDINANCE NO.2022-_____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMMENDING THE DEFINING AND LIMITING 
CONDITIONS FOR OPEN BURNING WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF THE 

CITY OF BRYANT; PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant has established an ordinance to define 
and limit conditions for open burning within the City of Bryant via 
Ordinance 2020-22 duly adopted by the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant wishes to amend the current ordinance 
2020-22 in its entirety as noted below. 

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS THAT: 

Section 1. Permissible Burning 

A.   Yard Waste Abatement 

In accordance with Arkansas Code Annotated § 8-6-1703 (d), instances of open 
burning of yard waste by residents are expressly discouraged. For the purpose of 
open burning, “yard waste” shall be defined as grass clippings, leaves, tree limbs, 
and shrubbery trimmings collected by a resident or property owner from all 
property types recognized by the City of Bryant and located within the city limits of 
the City of Bryant. 

1. The burning of yard waste is allowed November 1st through March 31st.  
 

2. No burning is permitted:  Thanksgiving Day, or the day following Thanksgiving, 
Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, New Year’s Eve, or New Year’s Day.  

 
3. Open burning of yard waste shall not be allowed unless the following conditions 

are met; 
 

a. Yard waste materials to be burned located on parcels of less than one (1) 
acre shall be placed in a pile no larger than five feet in diameter and two feet 
in height. Pile(s) shall be no less than 10 feet from any structure or property 
line. No more than two piles may be burned at any given time by an individual 
resident or property owner. On parcels of more than 1 acre, the number of 
piles will not be restricted. 
 

b. The fire must be attended at all times. The person attending the fire must 
have an adequate water supply or other suitable means available to 
completely extinguish the fire. 

 
c. Burning shall be completely extinguished by sunset. 



 

 

 

d. Land parcels of 2 acres or more are exempt from the prescribed Calendar 
periods. Although these parcels may burn year-round, they must comply with 
conditions of Section 1 article E, and Section 2 of this Ordinance. 

 
e. For purposes of determining Land Parcel size, the Bryant Fire Chief or his 

designee shall use the Saline County Parcel Records accessible through 
www.efsedge.com/saline. 

 
 

B.  Burn Bans may be issued under the following circumstances. 
1. Atmospheric conditions that prevent smoke from rising freely. 
2. When excessively dry conditions exist. 
3. Sustained winds greater than fifteen (15) mph  
4. Frequent peak wind gusts greater than twenty-five (25) mph  

1. Burn Bans may be issued by: 
1. Governor 
2. County Judge 
3. Bryant Fire Chief or designee 

 
 

C.  Development or Construction Burning 

Open burning of trees, limbs, or vegetation removed during the process of site 
improvement shall not be allowed unless the following conditions are met: 

a. All surface vegetation must be removed adjacent to the burning materials for a 
distance of no less than 20 feet in all directions. 

b. Approved materials to be burned shall be placed in a pile(s) no larger than 25 
feet in diameter and 10 feet in height. No more than one pile per acre on the site may 
be burned at any given time up to 10 acres.  For sites over 10 acres, the number and 
arrangement of piles must be approved by a Fire Department representative. 

c. The fire must be checked periodically. Sufficient extinguishment equipment shall 
be on site and available to completely contain the fire. 

d. The burning is to occur at least 100 feet from all combustible material. 

e. A Burning Permit must be obtained prior to burning from the City of Bryant Fire 
Marshal’s office.  The permit will be good for a 30 calendar day period, and the fee will 
be $150. A site inspection shall be performed by the Fire Marshal or designee at least 1 
week prior to burning. The material shall be sufficiently seasoned and dried to expedite 
burning and reduce smoke. A fan or other device to assist burning is HIGHLY 
RECOMMENDED.  
 
f. Notification must be given to the Bryant Fire Department at least twenty-four 

hours prior to the intended burning of said trees, limbs, or vegetation, by notifying the 
City of Bryant Public Safety Dispatch at 501-943-0864. 

http://www.efsedge.com/saline


 

 

 
 
 
 
 

E. Other Allowed Burning 

The following types of burning are permitted according to the circumstances listed 
herein: 

 
a. Fires allowed by the Bryant Fire Department for the purpose of weed abatement, 
prevention and/or elimination of fire hazards, and burning of storm debris following a 
disaster (City, County, State, Federal), as declared by an appropriate governmental 
authority, with burning of such debris at the sole discretion of the Fire Chief or his 
designee depending on weather, safety, and environmental concerns. 
 
b. Instruction of fire department employees in methods of firefighting or for and 
under the direct supervision of the Bryant Fire Department or authorized fire training 
instructor. 
 
c. Fires that are associated with ceremonial (bonfire) or recreational purposes 
(Grills, Smokers, fireplaces, fire rings, or fire pits). 

1. The location of ceremonial fires shall be a minimum of 50 
feet from a structure.  Approved materials to be burned 
shall be placed in a pile no larger than 15 feet in diameter 
and 10 feet in height. Only the burning of dry and 
seasoned wood is permitted. The Bryant Fire Department 
shall inspect and approve the burn site. No permit is 
required. 

2. The location of recreational fires shall be a minimum of 10 
feet from a structure. Approved materials to be burned 
shall be placed in a pile no larger than three feet in 
diameter and two feet in height.  Only the burning of dry 
and seasoned wood is permitted. No permit is required. 

 
 Section 2. Prohibited Acts of Burning 
 

The following open burning practices shall be prohibited within the corporate 
boundaries of the City of Bryant, Arkansas; 

a. Open burning of trash, garbage, and/or rubbish by any resident or business for 
the purpose of incineration. 
b. Open burning of construction waste of any kind on the premises of a construction 
site. Small warming fires are allowed in an approved container utilizing dry and 
seasoned wood only.  
c. Open burning of materials resulting from remodeling, dismantling, and/or 
demolition of structures or buildings. 



 

 

d. Open burning of trees, limbs, and vegetation clippings generated by, or resulting 
from, commercial activities or establishments that provide lawn maintenance and/or 
grounds care services through the course of normal business activities. 
e. Open burning in any right-of-way (ditches, alleys, street, etc.) 
f. Any burning activity when an appropriate governmental agency or executive 
institutes a burn ban as listed above. 
 
g. Any burning that is in violation of the requirements listed within this Ordinance. 

 

Section 3. Violations and Enforcement 
a. An offender shall be issued a warning citation for the first violation of any 
provision of this ordnance unless circumstances warrant more severe enforcement 
action as determined by the City of Bryant Fire Chief or City of Bryant Police Chief. 
b. Any person convicted of a second violation of a provision of the Ordinance shall 
be fined the sum of one hundred dollars ($100.00) plus court cost. 
c. Any person convicted of a third violation of a provision of this Ordinance within a 
five (5) year period shall be fined the sum of two hundred fifty dollars ($500.00) plus 
court cost, and be ineligible to conduct any open burning of any type within the city 
boundaries of Bryant.  Citations may be issued by the Bryant Police Department or 
authorized Fire Department personnel, who have law enforcement authority. 

 

Section 4.  Repealer Clause 
All ordinances or resolutions or any parts thereof in conflict with the hereinabove 
are repealed to the extent of the conflict. 

 

Section 5. Severability Clause 
If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are 
declared to be severable. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the _______ day of ________, 20_____. 

 
_____________________________ 

Allen Scott, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 



 

 

_________________________________ 

Mark Smith, City Clerk 















RESOLUTION NO. _______________

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS OF

THE CITY OF BRYANT

TO UTILIZE FEDERAL-AID SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM FUNDS

WHEREAS, Metroplan has issued a call for transportation projects from member jurisdictions for federal
fiscal year 2023 and the City of Bryant will submit Hilldale-Midland Connector Trail for consideration of
grant funding, and

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant understands that, if selected, Federal-aid Surface Transportation Program
Funds are available at 80% federal participation and 20% local match for Hilldale-Midland Connector
Trail, and

WHEREAS, Bryant City Council has vetted the project and supports its submittal to Metroplan, and

WHEREAS, this project, using federal funding, will be open and available for use by the general public
and maintained by the applicant for the life of the project.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY BRYANT CITY COUNCIL THAT:

SECTION I: Bryant City Council agrees to include the local match requirements within its budget for
FFY 2023 and subsequent years as necessary. The City of Bryant is going to ask for $400,000 and will be
obligated to match 20% equaling $80,000, with the full amount to be budgeted in 001-0420-5816. This
project's funding will come out of Parks 1/8 Sales Tax Savings Balance, Fund 045 via transfer when
needed. This Resolution, if the Grant is awarded, acts as authorization for this expenditure and is an
obligation of those matching funds of Budgetary Purposes.

SECTION II: The City of Bryant will participate in accordance with its designated responsibility,
including maintenance of this project.

SECTION III: Mayor Allen E. Scott is hereby authorized and directed to execute all appropriate
agreements and contracts necessary to expedite the construction of the above stated project.

SECTION IIII: Bryant City Council pledges its full support and hereby authorizes the Arkansas
Department of Transportation and Metroplan to initiate action to implement this project.

THIS RESOLUTION adopted this ________ day of ___________________, 2022.

Signed: ____________________________________
Allen E. Scott, Mayor

ATTEST: _________________________________
(SEAL) Mark Smith, City Clerk



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-   
 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING ANNEXATION OF LANDS TO BRYANT 
MUNICIPAL PROPERTY OWNERS’ MULTIPURPOSE IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 62 (LOMBARD DEVELOPMENT LLC-CYPRESS 
VALLEY, PHASE 2) 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Bryant Municipal Property Owners' Multipurpose Improvement District No. 
62 Lombard Development LLC-Cypress Valley (the "District") was established by Bryant City 
Ordinance No. 2006-16 entered April 24, 2006; and 

 
WHEREAS, the owners of the property described in Exhibit A hereto (“Petitioners”) wish 

to be annexed into the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the annexation is for the purpose of providing improvements to the property 
for purposes similar to the purposes for which the District was formed; and 
 

WHEREAS, Petitioner has furnished an abstractor’s certificate certifying that Petitioner 
owns all of the property in Exhibit A to be annexed to the District. 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has presented the petition to the Mayor; and  

WHEREAS, the Mayor has set October 25, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. as the date and 
time for a hearing before the Bryant City Council for consideration of the petition; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Bryant City Council has determined from an abstractor's certificate of 

property ownership that those signing the petition constitute all the owners of the real 
property to be located in said district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Arkansas Municipal Property Owners' Improvement District Law 

provides that if the governing body determines that all the owners of the real property to be 
located in the district have petitioned for the improvements, it shall then be its duty by 
ordinance to establish and lay off the district as defined in the petition and to appoint the 
commissioners named in the petition. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF BRYANT, 
ARKANSAS: 

 
Section 1. That the real property described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made 

a part hereof is hereby established and laid off as Bryant Municipal Property Owners' 
Multipurpose Improvement District No. 62 (Lombard Development LLC-Cypress Valley) for 
the purpose of constructing and installing facilities for waterworks, recreation, drainage, gas 
pipelines, underground trenches and excavations necessary for the installation of electric 
and telephone distribution systems, sanitary sewers, streets, including curbs and gutters, 
sidewalks, together with facilities related to any of the foregoing within said district. 

 
 
 



 
Section 2. If any provision of this Resolution shall be held or deemed to be illegal, 

inoperative or unenforceable, the same shall not affect any other provision or provisions 
herein contained or render the same invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable to any extent 
whatsoever. 

 
Section 3. The Bryant City Council hereby determines that there is a need for 

additional infrastructure within the City and hereby determines that the passage of this 
ordinance will facilitate construction of additional infrastructure within the City.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this  day of  , 2022. 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 




















	Invocation
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Call to Order
	Approval of Minutes
	Presentations and Announcements
	Director's Report
	Public Comments
	Old Business
	New Business
	Finance
	Community Development
	Fire Department
	Public Works

	Council Comments
	Mayor Comments
	Adjournments
	LakeMeadows
	OakGlenn
	HH Exhibits for Council
	LHC_5 - Council
	HC_5 - Council
	CC_5 - council
	OC_5 - Council

	Bryant Parkway Photos
	4. North to South
	3. North Bridge Embankment
	2. North to South
	1. South to North


